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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is the underwriting of general insurance business.

There has been no significant change in the nature of this activity during the financial year.

RESULTS
RM'000

Profit for the financial year 95,819

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other
than as disclosed in the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
The Company paid an interim single tier dividend of RM0.40 per ordinary share totalling
RM40,000,000 in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2020 on 24 November 2020.

The dividend has been approved by Bank Negara Malaysia and accounted for in the shareholders’
equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no issuance of new ordinary shares during the financial year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (“the Board") is satisfied that the Company has substantially complied with
the prescriptive applications in BNM/RH/PD_029-9: Corporate Governance.
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Board Responsibilities

The Board has the overall responsibility for promoting the sustainable growth and financial
soundness of the Company, and for ensuring reasonable standards of fair dealing, without undue
influence from any party. This includes a consideration of the long-term implications of the Board's
decisions on the Company and its customers, officers and the general public. In fulfilling this role,
the Board must:

(a) approve the Risk Appetite, business plans and other initiatives which would, singularly or
cumulatively, have a material impact on the Company's risk profile;

{b) oversee the selection, performance, remuneration and succession plans of the Chief
Executive Officer, Control Function heads and other members of Senior Management,
such that the Board is satisfied with the collective competence of Senior Management to
effectively lead the operations of the Company;

{(c) oversee the implementation of the Company’'s gevernance framework and Internal Control
Framework, and periodically review whether these remain appropriate in light of material
changes to the size, nature and complexity of the Company’s operations;

{d) promote, together with Senior Management, a sound corporate culture within the
Company which reinforces ethical, prudent and professional behaviour,

(e) promote sustainability through appropriate environmental, social and governance
considerations in the Company’s business strategies;

() oversee and approve the recovery and resolution as well as business continuity plans for
the Company to restore its financial strength, and maintain or preserve critical operations
and critical services when it comes under stress; and

(9) promete timely and effective communication befween the Company and Bank Negara
Malaysia ("BNM") on matters affecting or that may affect the safety and soundness of the
Company.

Composition of the Board

The Directors in office during the financial year and during the period from the end of the financial
year to the date of the report are:

YBhg Tan Sri Leo Moggie (Chairman) (Retired on 22 September 2020)

Dato’ Sri Abdul Hamidy bin Abdul Hafiz ~ (Appointed as Interim Chairman on 22 September
2020)

Song Yam Lim

Gregory Jerome Gerald Fernandes
Olivier Bouchard
Susan Yuen Su Min

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company's Articles of Association, Olivier Bouchard and
Susan Yuen Su Min retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election.
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CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incerperated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Composition_of the Board {continued)

The Board comprises individuals with a wide range of professional skills and operational
experience:

Dato’ Sri Abdul Hamidy Bin Abdul Hafiz (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Dato’ Sri Abdul Hamidy has extensive experience in finance and banking. He was formerly
Chairman of Danajamin Nasional Bhd, Credit Guarantee Corporation and Association of Bank
Malaysia. He was also the CEO of three financial institutions namely Danaharta Nasional Bhd,
Affin Bank Bhd. and Kuwait Finance House Bhd. He is currently a member of the Board of
Directors of Sime Darby Bhd, Ambank Berhad, Chairman of Ambank |slamic Berhad and a
member of the Appeals Committee of Bursa MalaySIa

Song Yam Lim (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Song is currently the General Manager of Hap Seng Insurance Services Sdn. Bhd. He has had
extensive experience in the insurance industry having held numerous senior executive roles during
his 45 years in the industry. He was formerly the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director for
MSIG Insurance (M) Bhd., Aviva Insurance (M) Bhd. and CGU Insurance (M) Bhd.

Gregory Jerome Gerald Fernandes (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Fernandes is currently a Corporate Advisor specializing in strategy, fund raising and other
finance related services. He is an accountant by profession and is a Member of the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants (MIA) and an Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales (1981). He began his career in London with Ernst & Young and had since
served in executive positions in various large corporations, the most recent as a Board Member,
CFO and Senior Vice President for Global Marketing in a public company involved in transport and
engineering logistics. He is also currenily an Independent Non Executive Director of Affin Bank
Berhad.

Susan Yuen Su Min {Independent Non-Executive Director}

Ms. Susan Yuen Su Min was appointed to Chubb Insurance Malaysia Berhad on 14 February
2019. She has over 30 years of working experience in the banking industry and has served a
number of banking establishments including Maybank and HSBC Malaysia. She was also
previously attached to the National Bank of Abu Dhabi Malaysia Berhad ("NBAD") where she was
the Regional CEO Asia and Country CEO Malaysia from 2014 te 2018. Prior to joining NBAD, she
served as CEC of ANZ Banking Group in Hong Kong from 2009 to 2014. She is currently a
member of the Board of Directors of Alliance Bank Malaysia Berhad and Press Metal Aluminium
Holdings Berhad.
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CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE {CONTINUED)

Composition of the Board {continued}

Clivier Bouchard {Non-independent Executive Director)

Mr. Bouchard is the Regional Chief Financial Officer for Chubb in the Asia Pacific Region. He has
extensive experience in the insurance and financial services industry having held numerous senior
executive roles in various multinational corporations during his 20 year career. Before his
appeintment as the Regional Chief Financial Officer in April 2015, he was the Financial Controller
for Chubb in Asia Pacific, responsible for the management resuits and statutory reporting, as well
as the compliance environment of the financial division throughout the region.

The current Board Committees are:

Board Audit Committee

The primary objective of the Board Audit Committee is to assist the Board in the discharge of its
responsibilities and to ensure the integrity and transparency of the financial reporting process.

The Board Audit Committee comprises of the following Directors:

Gregory Jerome Gerald Fernandes {Appointed as Interim Chairman of Board Audit
Committee on 22 September 2020)

Dato’ Sri Abdul Hamidy bin Abdul Hafiz

Song Yam Lim

Susan Yuen Su Min

YBhg Tan Sri Leo Moggie {Retired on 22 September 2020)

Board Nominating Committee

The primary objective of the Board Nominating Committee is to establish or to ensure that there is
a formal and fransparent procedure for the appointment of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and
senior officers who report directly to the Chief Executive Officer and to assess the effectiveness of
individual Directors, the Board as a whole, Chief Executive Officer and senior officers on an on-
going basis.

The Board Nominating Committee comprises of the following Directors:

Gregory Jerome Gerald Fernandes (Chairman)

Dato’ Sri Abhdul Hamidy bin Abdul Hafiz

Song Yam Lim

Susan Yuen Su Min

YBhg Tan Sri Lec Moggie (Retired on 22 September 2020)
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CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Board Remuneration Committee

The primary objective of the Board Remuneration Committee is to provide a formal and
transparent procedure for developing a Remuneration Policy for Directors, Chief Executive Officer
and senior officers and ensuring that their compensation is competitive and consistent with the
Company's culture, objectives and strategy.

The Board Remuneration Committee comprises the following Directors:

Gregory Jerome Gerald Fernandes {Chairman)

Dato’ Sri Abdul Hamidy bin Abdul Hafiz

Susan Yuen Su Min (Appointed as Committee Member on 22
September 2020)

YBhg Tan Sri Leo Moggie (Retired on 22 September 2020)

Board Risk Management Committee

The primary objective of the Board Risk Management Committee is to oversee and ensure the
effectiveness of Senior Management's activities in managing the key risk areas of the Company
and to ensure that an appropriate risk management framework, strategy and process is in place
and functioning effectively.

The Board Risk Management Committee comprises of the following Directors:

Scng Yam Lim (Chairman)

Gregory Jerome Gerald Fernandes

Dato’ Sri Abdul Hamidy bin Abdul Hafiz

Susan Yuen Su Min

YBhg Tan Sri Leo Moggie (Retired on 22 September 2020)
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{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

The number of Board and Board Committee meetings held during the financial year is set out
below.

Meetings of Committees

Board of Risk
Directors Audit Nominating Remuneration Management
Number of meetings held
during the financial year 8 7 4 3 4
Number Number Number Number Number
attended  attended attended attended attended
*YBhg Tan Sri Lec Moggie 6/7 5/6 3/3 212 313
Dato’ Sri Abdul Hamidy bin 8/8 77 44 3/3 4/4
Abdul Hafiz
Song Yam Lim 8/8 77 4/4 - 414
Gregory Jerome Gerald 8/8 77 4/4 3/3 4/4
Fernandes
Qlivier Bouchard 8/8 - - - -
*Susan Yuen Su Min 8/8 77 4/4 1M 4/4

* Retired on 22 September 2020
# Appointed as member of the Board Remuneration Committee on 22 September 2020

Internal Control and Risk Management Framework

The Board is responsible and committed to establishing a sound internal control framework which
includes financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management practices. The
internal control framework is designed to manage rather than eliminate risks and therefore can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. An integral part of the
internal control framework is the ongoing company-wide risk management process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Company.

The Company’s Enterprise Risk Management Framework (“RMF”) utilizes the “3 Lines of Defense”
strategy, as part of its internal control framework to help the Company to achieve its business
objectives, meet its corporate obligations and at the same time maintain its reputation. The
implementation of the RMF is delegated to the Enterprise Risk Committee ("ERC”) who is
responsible for monitoring, assessing and reporting on risk related activity to the Board through the
Board Risk Management Committee ("BRMC").

The Board Audit Commitiee ("BAC”) regularly evaluates the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Company's infernal control framework based on reports prepared by Internal Audit, Compliance,
external auditors and any other relevant authority. Internal Audit in turn, ensures that
recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls, risk
management and governance processes are addressed in a timely manner.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Policy

Remuneration systems form a key component of the governance and incentive structure through
which the Board and Senior Management (including Chief Executive Officer and Senior Officers)
drive performance, convey acceptable risk taking behaviour and reinforce the Company's
corporate and risk culture. Senior Officers include 4 Head of Business Line and 10 Head of
Support Function.

The overall Remuneration system of the Company is guided by the following principles:

(a) It is subject to the Board’s active oversight to ensure that it operates as intended.

{b) It is in line with the business and risk strategies, corporate values and long-term interests
of the Company.

{c) It is designed and implemented with input from Control Functions and the Board Risk
Management Committee ("RMC”") to ensure that risk exposure and risk outcomes are
adequately considered.

{d) It must not threaten the Company’s ability to maintain adequate capital base.

(e) it must be sustainable according to the financial condition of the Company as a whole and
Justified on the basis of Company performance, the business unit and the individual
concerned.

() It must be appropriate to the nature, scale and complexity of the role, function or service
performed.

(g} Remuneration decisions must not be made and/or approved by a beneficiary of that
decision.

The Remuneration system of the Company is linked to its risk management framework in that it is
consistent with the Risk Appetite and the long-term strategy of the Company. The Remuneration
for individuals within the Company must be aligned with prudent risk-taking and appropriately
adjusted for risks.

This includes ensuring that:

{(a) Remuneration is adjusted to account for all types of risk, and must be determined by both
quantitative measures and qualitative judgement;

(b) The size of the bonus pool is linked to the overall performance of the Company;

(c) Incentive payments are linked {o the contribution of the individual and business unit to the
overall perfermance of the Cempany;

(d) Bonuses are not guaranteed, except in the context of sign-on bonuses;
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Policy {continued)
{e) For members of Senior Management & Other Material Risk Takers:
(i) a portion of Remuneration consists of variable Remuneration to be paid on the
basis of individual, business-unit and institution-wide measures that adequately

assess performance; and

(i) the variable portion of Remuneration increases along with the individual's level of
accountability.

The Company participates in industry salary and benefits surveys and are guided hy the results
arising from these surveys as it is a comparative measure of market competitiveness and
alignment.

The Remuneration for each member of Senicr Management & Other Material Risk Taker is
approved by the Board annually.

Methodology for Determining Remuneration

The Company engages in an enterprise wide Performance Planning and Review process ("PPR").
This annual performance review consists of the following:

{a) establishing the financial, business and development objectives for each department;
{b) evaluating the resuits, work skills and competencies; and
(c) developing appropriate skills and knowledge for current roles and future progression.

This process consists of a series of review conversations between managers and staff completed
during the first quarter of each year. The process provides an opportunity for staff to set individual
objectives which are aligned to business objectives and the Company's risk appetite. Performance
achievements are acknowledged and compared against the prior year's target, and takes into
account qualitative criteria which has been given sufficient weightage in order to promote the
desired staff conduct and behavior {including acting in line with the requirements set out in Bank
Negara’s Fair Treatment of Financial Consumers policy document). Development needs are also
discussed with individual objectives linked to the business and strategic unit objectives for the
Company. Recommendations for reward and recognition arise from this process and are put
forward by the relevant divisicnal and departmental heads.

These performance reviews and recommendations are collated by the Head of Human Resources
("HR") and reviewed in consultation with the CEO. The CEQ and Head of HR will review the
remuneration recommendations and may consider adjustments, being guided by the assessments
of the effectiveness and contributions of the individual concerned and taking into account any
salary alignments to the market which is deemed critical. The CEQ and Head of HR shall ensure
that the Remuneration packages of the Company are competitive and consistent with the
Company's culiure, objectives and remuneration strategy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Policy (continued)

The Company adopts a multi-year framework to measure the performance of members of Senior
Management & Other Material Risk Takers. Such a framework provides for:

(a)

(b)

(c)

the deferment of payment of a portion of variable remuneration to the extent that risks are
realised over long periods, with these deferred portions increasing along with the
individual's level of accountability;

the calibration of an appropriate mix of cash, shares, share-linked instruments, and other
forms of remuneration to reflect risk alignment; and

adjustments to the vested and unvested portions of variable remuneration (through malus
of unvested awards) should one or more of malus events as stated in the Malus policy
have been identified/established.

To promote behaviours that are aligned to the intended effects of incentive structures, the
Company ensures that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

variables used to measure risk and performance outcomes of an individual relate closely
to the level of accountability of that individual,

the determination of performance measures and variable remuneration considers that
certain indicators (such as share prices) may be influenced in the short term by factors like
market sentiment or general economic conditions which are not specifically related to the
Company's performance or an individual's actions, and the use of such indicators does not
create incentives for individuals to take on excessive risk in the short term; and

recipient of Chubb Ltd shares will be required to commit not to undertake activities (such
as personal hedging strategies and/or liability-related insurance) in connection with any
unvested deferred remuneration awards or any vested awards subject to a retention
period) that will undermine the risk alignment effects embedded in their remuneration.
Disciplinary action shall be taken against these who breaches this restriction.

To safeguard the independence and authority of individuals engaged in Conirel Functions, the
Company must ensure that the Remuneration of such individuals is based principally on the
achievement of Contro! Functions objectives, and determined in a manner that is independent from
the business lines they oversee. To achieve this:

(a)

(b)

{c)

Remuneration for employees in Control Functions are structured in a way that is principally
based on the achievement of their control objectives and does not compromise their
independence.

Due care is exercised to preserve a clear distinction between performance measures of
staff responsible for Control Functions and the performance of any bhusiness unit,

The Board Remuneration Committee is actively involved in the performance reviews of
individuals primarily responsible for Control Functions.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received or become
entitled fo receive any benefit (other than the Directors’ remuneration) by reason of a contract
made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director
is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement

whose object is to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings required to be kept under Section 59 of the
Companies Act 2016, none of the Directors in office at the end of the financial year held any
interest in shares in, or debentures of the Company or its related corporations during the financial
year.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration and other emoluments during the financial year are as follows:

RM'000

Directors’ fees 844

During the financial year, the Company has purchased a Directors’ & Officers’ Liability Insurance
policy for all its Directors and Officers of the Company, which amounted to RM56,104.

RESTRICTED SHARE OPTION PLAN

Under Chubb's long term incentive plan, restrictive share options were granted to eligible
employees of the Company. The exercisable price of these options is the fair market value at issue
date. These options vest at various dates over a 3 year period from the grant date and any
unvested options are cancelled on termination of employment. This plan is a group scheme with
expenses incurred under the scheme charged out by Chubb to the Company on an annual basis.
Any option not exercised or cancelled pursuant to the terms of plan will be forfeited by the tenth
anniversary from the date of grant.

10
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RESTRICTED SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted average
exercise prices are as follows:

Average exercise Share

price per share options

RM Unifs

At beginning of financial year 36,705
Granted 620.33 4,111
Forfeited 565.39 {1,270)
Exercised 306.29 (3,326)
Transferred out (312)
At end of financial year 35,908

Out of the 35,908 outstanding options, 29,049 options were exercisable. Options granted in 2020
resulted in 4,111 shares options being issued at exercise price of RM 620.33 each. 3,326 options
were exercised in 2020 at exercise price of RM 396.29.

Share options outstanding at the end of the financial year have the following expiry date and
exercise prices:

Exercise price Share options

per share 2020

RM Units

2021 258.86 4,010
2022 303.12 2,554
2023 352.87 3,325
2024 399.86 3,615
2025 474.33 3,875
2026 489.25 4,233
2027 574.46 4,603
2028 591.24 3,053
2029 553.34 3,274
2030 620.33 3,366
35,908

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the financial year determined using the
Black-Scholes valuation model was RM84.57 per option. The significant inputs into the model were
share price of RM620.33, at the grant date, the exercise price shown above, volatility of 18.00%,
dividend yield of 2.08%, an expected option life of 5 years and on annual risk-free interest rate of
1.18%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously compounded share
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last three years. Details of
restricted share option plan are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

11
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED}

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

(b

()

Before the financial statements of the Company were made out, the Directors took
reasonable steps:

(i)

(i)

(i)

to ascertain that there was adequate provision for its insurance liabilities in
accordance with the valuation methods specified in Part D of the Risk-Based
Capital ("RBC") Framework for insurers issued by Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM")
pursuant to Section 47(1) of the Financial Services Act, 2013;

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad
debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves
that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate allowance had
been made for doubtful debts; and

to ensure that any current assets, other than debts, which were unlikely to realise
in the ordinary course of business, their values as shown in the accounting
records had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to
realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would

render:

(i)

(ii)

the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful
debts in the financial statements of the Company inadequate to any substantial
extent; and

the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the
Company misleading.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Company which would render any
amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

12
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other persen; or

(i) any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year, other than disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.

) In the opinion of the Directors:

(i no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year
which will or may affect the ability of the Company to meet its obligations when
they fall due; and

{ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the
interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is
likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Company for the
financial year in which this report is made; and

(i) the resulfs of the operations of the Company during the financial year were not
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature,

For the purpose of paragraphs (e) and (f}, contingent and other liabilities do not include

liabilities arising from contracts of insurance underwritten in the ordinary course of

business of the Company.
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The Directors regard Chubb Limited, a company incorperated in Zurich, Switzerland, as the
ultimate holding company.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Details of auditors' remuneration for financial year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 24
to the financial statements.

13
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), have expressed their
willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution dated 25 March
2021.

SONG YAM LIM GREGORY JEROME GERALD FERNANDES
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur

14
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CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

We, Song Yam Lim and Gregory Jerome Gerald Fernandes, two of the Directors of Chubb
Insurance Malaysia Berhad, state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set
out on pages 21 to 107 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2020 and of the financial performance and cash flows of the
Company for the financial year ended on that date in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution dated 25 March
2021.

-~

bamsrs — vondl-

SONG YAM LIM GREGORY JEROME GERALD FERNANDES
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur
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STATUTORY DECILARATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 251(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

I, Lim Joo Leong, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Chubb
Insurance Malaysia Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set
out on pages 21 to 107 are, in my opinion, correct and | make this solemn declaration
conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declarations Act, 1960.

LIM JOO LEONG
MIA 13173

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the named above at Kuala Lumpur in Malaysia before me, on
25 March 2021.

BC/M/700
1/1/2021-31/1212023 [,

{.evel B, Tribaca
215, Ja'an knbi, Bukit Bintang,
55100 Kuala Lumpur.
Tel: 03-2724 7800
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No. 197001000564 (9872A)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of Chubb Insurance Malaysia Berhad (“the Company”) give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

What we have audited

We have audited the financial statements of the Company, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 21 to 107.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence and other ethical responsibilities

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

- PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), Chartered Accountants, Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan
Rakyat, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwe.com/my
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 197001000564 (9872A)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors' Report, but does not include the financial statements of the Company and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 197001000564 (98724)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(a)

(b)

(e

(d)

(e)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the
Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Company
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 197001000564 (9872A)

OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of

the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

PricamoderhauaeConpen PLT \P‘AS"“""

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS PLT SO0 O KHOON YEAN
LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146 02682/10/2021J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
25 March 2021
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incarporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note

ASSETS
Property and equipment 4
Right-of-use assets 5
Intangible assets 6
Investments

- Available-for-sale financial assets ("AFS") 7
Reinsurance assets 8
Insurance receivables 9
Other receivables 10
Deferred tax assets 17
Current tax assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital 11
Retained earnings 12
Available-for-sale fair value reserves 13
Equity reserve 14
Total equity
Insurance contract liabilities 15
Investment contract liabilities 16
Insurance payables 18
Lease liabilities 5
QOther payables 19

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

2020
RM'000

47,260
2,193
5,442

1,315,124
249,019
105,980

50,546
12,418
1,642
259,267

2,048,901

100,000
672,072
19,670
16,402

808,144

1,010,498
579
56,281
2,240
171,159

1,240,757

2,048,901

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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50,084
2,217
2,890

1,233,435
222,325
115,500

60,502
20,566
988
260,411

1,998,918

100,000
616,253
12,581
12,450

741,284

1,010,722
511
72,301
2,286
171,814

1,257,634

1,998,918



Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia})

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Gross earned premiums
Premiums ceded to reinsurers

Net earned premiums

Net investment income
Realised gains
Commission income
Other operating income

Net income

Total revenue

Gross claims paid

Claims ceded to reinsurers

Gross change to contract liahilities

Change in contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers

Net claims incurred

Commission expense
Management expenses
Finance cost

Total other expenses

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the financial year

Earnings per share (sen)
Basic

Note

20(a)
20{b)

25

26

2020
RM'000

760,915

(199,167)

561,748

53,645
7,729
41,207
1,713

104,294

666,042

(310,855)
64,393

(60,673)
33,163

(273,972)

(96,804)
(166,008)
(130)

(262,942)

129,128
{33,309)

95,819

95,82

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2019
RM'000

862,113

(222,922)

639,191

60,985
1,091
52,975
1,641

116,692

755,883

(373,068)
65,608

(19,529)

(476)

(327,465)

(121,461)
(189,636)
(199)

{311,296)

117,122
(29,402)

87,720

B7.72



Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Profit for the financial year 95,819 87,720
Other comprehensive income:
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified fo
profit or loss:
Available-for-sale fair value reserves
Net gains arising during the financial year 16,840 14,891
Net realised gains transferred to profit or loss {7,612) {56)
9,328 14,835
Tax effects thereon (Note 17) (2,239) (8,560)
7,089 11,275

Total comprehensive income for the financial year 102,908 08,995

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Registration No,
197001000564 {9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Non-
distributable Distributable
Share Equity Fair value Retained Total
capital reserve _reserves earnings equity
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2020 100,000 12,450 12,581 616,253 741,284
Profit for the financial year - - - 95,819 95,819
Other comprehensive income
for the financial year - - 7,089 - 7,089
Dividend paid - - - {(40,000) {40,000)
Comprehensive income for the
financial year- share-based
long term incentive plan
vested - 3,952 - - 3,952
- 3,052 - - 3,952
At 31 December 2020 100,000 16,402 19,670 672,072 808,144
At 1 January 2019 100,000 10,295 1,306 669,533 781,134
Profit for the financial year - - - 87,720 87,720
Other comprehensive income
for the financial year - - 11,275 - 11,275
Dividend paid - - - (141,000} (141,000)
Comprehensive income for the
financial year- share-based
long term incentive plan
vested - 2,155 - - 2,155
- 2,155 - - 2,155
At 31 December 2019 100,000 12,450 12,581 616,253 741,284

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Registration No.
197001000564 {9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note 2020
RM'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 27 {11,439)
Interest income received 55,201
Dividend income received 132
Income tax paid (28,054)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 15,930
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 2
Purchase of property and equipment 4 (1,844)
Purchase of intangibles assets 6 (3,619)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (5,461)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liabilities 5 {1,613)
Dividend paid (40,000)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (41,613)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (31,144)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the financial year 280,411
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
financial year 259,267
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Fixed and call deposits:
- Licensed financial institutions in Malaysia 242,648
Cash and bank balances 16,619
259,267

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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91,433
58,378
66

(29,289)

120,588

21
(1,275)
(1,251)

(2,505)

(1,860)
(141,000)

(142,860)

(24,777)

315,188

290,411

277,414
12,997

290,411



Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

PRINGIPAL ACTIVITY AND GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is principally engaged in the underwriting of all classes of general insurance
business. There has been no significant change in the nature of this activity during the financial
year.

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.

The Directors regard Chubb Limited, a company incorporated in Zurich, Switzerland, as the
ultimate helding company of the Company.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a
resolution of the Directors on 256 March 2021,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been used consistently in dealing with items which are
considered material in relation to the financial statements.

{a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS"), International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

The financial statements of the Company have also been prepared under the historical
cost basis, except otherwise stated in these significant accounting policies. The Company
has met the minimum capital requirements as prescribed by the RBC Framework as at the
date of the statement of financial position.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during reported
financial year. It also requires Directors to exercise their judgement in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies. Although these estimates are based on the
Directors' best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ from
estimates.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note
3 to the financial statements.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is also the

Company’s functional currency. Unless otherwise indicated, the amounts in these financial
statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand.
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED}

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation {continued)

(i)

(i)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to
existing standards that are applicable to the Company and are effective.

The relevant new accounting standards, amendments and improvements to
published standards and interpretations to existing accounting standards that are
effective and applicable for the Company's financial year beginning on 1 January
2020 are as follows:

{i) The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (Revised 2018)

(i) Amendments to MFRS 101 and MFRS 108 ‘Definition of Material’

(i) Amendments to MFRS 3 ‘Definition of a Business’

(iv) Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139 and MFRS 7 ‘Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform’

The adoption of these amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
current period or any prior period and is not likely to affect future periods.

Standards early adopted by the Company.
Amendments to MFRS 16 ‘COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions’

The Company has elected to early adopt Amendments to MFRS 16 ‘COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions’ for the first time in the 2020 financial statements; with
the date of initial application of 1 January 2020, which resulted in changes in
accounting policies.

On adoption of the MFRS 16 amendment, the Company is not required to assess
whether a rent concession that occurs as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and meet specified conditions is a lease modification.

The Company accounts for such COVID-19-related rent concession as a variable
lease payment in the period(s) in which the event or condition that triggers the
reduced payment occurs.

In accordance with the ftransitional provisions provided in the MFRS 16
amendment, the comparative information for 2019 was not restated and continued
to be reported under the previous accounting policies in accordance with the lease
medification principles in MFRS 16. These amendments had no impact to the
retained earnings on 1 January 2020.
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to
existing standards that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective.

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are
effective for financial year beginning after 1 January 2022. None of these is
expected to have significant effect on the financial statements of the Company,
except the following set out below:

Annual Improvements to MFRS 9 ‘Fees in the 10% Test for Derecognition
of Financial Liabilities’ {effective 1 January 2022) clarifies that only fees paid
or received between the borrower and the lender, including the fees paid or
received on each other's behalf, are included in the cash flow of the new
loan when performing the 10% test.

An entity shall apply the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified
or exchanged on or after the heginning of the annual reporting - peried in
which the entity first applies the amendment.

Amendments to MFRS 3 'Reference to Conceptual Framework’ {effective 1
January 2022) replace the reference to Framework for Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with 2018 Conceptual Framework.
The amendments did not change the current accounting for business
combinations on acquisition date.

The amendments provide an exception for the recognition of liabilities and
contingent liabilities should be in accordance with the principles of MFRS
137 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ and IC
Interpretation 21 ‘Levies’ when falls within their scope. It also clarifies that
contingent assets should not be recognised at the acquisition date.

The amendments shall be applied prospectively.

Amendments to MFRS 116 ‘Proceeds before Intended Use' {effective 1
January 2022) prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of a property,
plant and equipment the proceeds received from selling items produced by
the property, plant and equipment before it is ready for its intended use. The
sales proceeds should instead be recognised in profit or loss.

The amendments also clarify that testing whether an asset is functioning
properly refers to assessing the technical and physical performance of the
property, plant and equipment.

The amendments shall be applied retrospectively.
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to
existing standards that are applicable to the Company but not yet
effective.{continued)

Amendments to MFRS 137 ‘Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract’ (effective 1 January 2022} clarify that direct costs of fulfilling a
contract include both the incremental cost of fulfilling the contract as well as
an allocation of other costs directly related to fulfiling contracts. The
amendments also clarify that before recognising a separate provision for an
onerous contract, impairment loss that has occurred on assets used in
fulfilling the contract should be recognised.

The amendments shall be applied retrospectively.

Amendments to MFRS 101 ‘Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
Current’ {effective 1 January 2023) clarify that a liability is classified as non-
current if an entity has a substantive right at the end of the reporting period
to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current if a condition is breached at or before the
reporting date and a waiver is obtained after the reporting date. A loan is
classified as non-current if a covenant is breached after the reporting date.

The amendments shall be applied retrospectively.

MFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ and its amendments (effective from 1
January 2023) replaces MFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’.

MFRS 17 applies to insurance contracts issued, to all reinsurance contracts
and to investment contracts with discretionary participating features if an
entity also issues insurance contracts. For fixed-fee service contracts whose
primary purpose is the provision of services, an entity has an accounting
policy choice to account for them in accerdance with either MFRS 17 or
MFRS 15 ‘Revenue’. An entity is allowed to account financial guarantee
contracts in accordance with MFRS 17 if the entity has asserted explicitly
that it regarded them as insurance contracts. Insurance contracts, (other
than reinsurance) where the entity is the policyholder are not within the
scope of MFRS 17,

Embedded derivatives and distinct investment and service components

should be ‘unbundled’ and accounted for separately in accordance with the
refated MFRSs. Voluntary unbundling of other components is prohibited.
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation {continued)

(iif) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to
existing standards that are applicable to the Company but not yet
effective.{continued)

MFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ and its amendments (effective from 1
January 2023) replaces MFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’, (continued)

MFRS 17 requires a current measurement model where estimates are
remeasured at each reporting period. The measurement is based on the
building blocks of discounted, probability-weighted cash flows, a risk
adjustment and a contractual service margin ("CSM") representing the
unearned profit of the contract. An entity has a policy choice {o recognise
the impact of changes in discount rates and other assumptions that are
related to financial risks either in profit or loss or in other comprehensive
income.

Alternative measurement models are provided for the different insurance
coverages:

Simplified Premium Allocation Approach if the insurance coverage period is
a year or less; or

Variable Fee Approach should be applied for insurance contracts that
specify a link between payments to the policyholder and the returns on the
underlying items

The requirements of MFRS 17 align the presentation of revenue with other
industries. Revenue is allocated to the periods in proportion to the value of
the expected coverage and other services that the insurer provides in the
period, and claims are presented when incurred. Investment components
are excluded from revenue and claims.

Insurers are required to disclose information about amounts, judgements
and risks arising from insurance contracts.

The Company has not fully assessed the impact of MFRS 17 on its financial
statements.

None of accounting standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to
existing standards listed above were expected fo give rise to any material financial impact
to the Company upon initial application, except for MFRS @ and MFRS 17. The Company
is currently assessing the full impact arising from the requirements of MFRS 9 and MFRS
17 onto the Company’s accounting policies of which the cumulative impact upon adoption
will be recognised in the retained earnings as at 1 January 2023, and with enhanced
disclosures. The Company expects this process to be completed prior to the respective
effective dates.
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Registration No.

197001000564 {9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{b) Property and equipment

(i)

(ii)

Measurement basis

Property and equipment are initially recorded at cost. These include expenditure
that is directly atiributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate assef, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Property and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal. On disposal, the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line basis to allocate the costs of
other property and equipment to their residual values over the expected useful
lives of the assets.

The expected useful lives of the property and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Computers 3-10 years
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amounts and are credited or charged in profit or loss.
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring in use the specific software.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate
economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets.
Direct costs include the software development employee costs and appropriate portion of
relevant overheads.

Computer software costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of 4 to 7 years.

Work in progress is not amortised until the asset is ready for its intended use.
Leases
Lessee

The Company leases various offices and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 to 5 years but may have extension options. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use ("ROU”} asset and a correspending liability at the
date on which the leased asset is available for use by the Company (i.e. the
commencement date).

(i} Lease term

In determining the lease term, the Company considers all facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive fo exercise an extension option, or not {o
exercise a termination option. Extension options {or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be
extended (or not to be terminated).

The Company reassess the lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within the control of the Company and affects
whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously
included in the determination of lease term, or not to exercise an option previously
included in the determination of lease term. A revision in lease term results in
remeasurement of the lease liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{d) Leases (continued)

Lessee {continued)

(ii)

(iii)

ROU assets

ROU assets are initially measured at cost comprising the following:

. The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

. Any lease payments made at or hefore the commencement date less any
lease incentive received;

. Any initial direct costs; and

. Decommissioning or restoration costs.

ROU assets that are not investment properties are subsequently measured at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (if any). The ROU assets
are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reascnably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the ROU asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful
life. in addition, the ROU assets are adjusted for certain remeasurement of the
lease liabilities.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. The lease payments include the following:

. Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentive receivable;

. Variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

. Amounts ‘expected to be payable by the Company under residual value
guarantees;

. The exercise price of a purchase and extension options if the Company is
reasonably certain fo exercise that option; and

. Payments of penaliies for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising that option.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Leases (continued)

Lessee (continued}
{iii) Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is generaily the case for leases in the
Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing is used. This is the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the ROU in a similar economic environment with similar
term, security and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the [ease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

The Company presents the lease liabilities as a separate line item in the
statement of financial position. Interest expense on the lease liability is presented
within the finance cost in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

{iv) Reassessment of lease liabilities

A reassessment of the lease liability takes place if the cash flows change based on
the original terms and conditions.

V) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture. Payments
associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line bases as an expense in profit or loss.

Lessor

The Company classifies a lease as an operating lease if the lease does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating lease as lease
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is included in the
statement of financial position based on the nature of the asset. Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of underlying asset and
recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.

34



Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is recognised in the financial statements when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(i) Financial instrument categories and measurements

(1)

Investmenits

The Company classifies its investments into the following categories: fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), held-to-maturity financial assets
("HTM"), available-for-sale financial assets ("AFS"), and loans and
receivables (“LAR").

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were
acquired or originated. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this at every reporting
date.

FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financiai assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.
Investments typically bought with the infention to sell in the near future or
they constitute part of the portfolio of identified securities which has
evidence of actual pattern of short-term profit taking are classified as held-
for-trading.

These investments are initially recorded at fair value. The gains or losses
from the changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

HTM

Investment with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
categorised as held-to-maturity when the Company has positive intention
and ability to hold until maturity.

These investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of
the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition. After
initial measurement, HTM investments are measured at amortised cost,
using the effective yield method, less impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(&) Financial instruments (continued)

{i) Financial instrument categories and measurements (continued)

(1)

Investments {continued)
AFS

These investments are initially recorded at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly aftributable to their acquisition. After initial
measurement, AFS are re-measured at fair value at reporting date. Fair
value gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for impairment losses which are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value gains and losses of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency are analysed between franslation differences resulting from
changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in profit or loss; translation differences on non-
monetary securities are reported as a separate component of equity unti!
the investment is derecognised.

Unguoted investments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost. On derecognition, the cumulative fair value gains and
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to profit or loss.

LAR

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition. After initial
measurement, LAR are carried at amortised cost, using the effective yield
method, less impairment losses. LAR comprises of fixed deposits with
financial institutions exceeding 3 months. Interest income is recognised in
prcfit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Financial instrument categories and measurements {continued)

(2)

3

Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial
recognition at cost being the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables are
measured at amortised cost, using the effective yield method, less
impairment losses.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the
Company reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivable
accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in profit or loss. The
Company's insurance receivables are assessed and reviewed for
evidence of impairment as described in Note 2(e)(v} to the financial
statements.

Insurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria
for financial assets, as described in Note 2(e)(iv) to the financial
statements, have been met,

All financial assets are reviewed for impairment as described in Note
2(e){v) to the financial statements except for investment designated as
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequenily
measured at amortised cost other than those categorised as fair value
through profit or loss.

Other liabilities and payables are recognised when due and measured on
initial recognition at cost being the fair value of the consideration received
less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
measurement, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective
yield method.

Included in other payables is the deposit held on bends. This is the cash

collateral security provided to the Company for underwriting contract
bonds.
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(e) Financial instruments {continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Determination of fair value

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organised
financial market is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices for assets,
at the close of business on the reporting date.

For investments in unit and real estate investment trusts, fair value is determined
by reference fo published bid values or offer prices for liabilities, at the close of
business on the reporting date,

For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair value is
determined by using valuation fechniques such as recent arm's length
transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and relying as littlle as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

The fair value of floating rate and over-night deposits with financial institutions is
their carrying value. The carrying value is the cost of the deposit/placement and
accrued interest. The fair value of fixed interest/yield-bearing deposits is estimated
using discounted cash flow fechnigues.

If the fair value cannot be measured reliably, these financial instruments are
measured at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition
of the instrument or the amount received on issuing the financial liability. All
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the
cost of the investment.

Recognition of financial assets

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date which is the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets require delivery of
assets within the periocd generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights fo receive cash flows from
them have expired or where they have been transferred and the Company has
also ftransferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On de-
recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss thai was
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profif or loss,
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{e) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Derecognition of financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. On derecognition, the difference between the
carrying amount of the reduced financial liability or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Investments

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or
Company of financial assets is impaired, with the exception of fixed and call
deposits.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows {excluding future expected credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate
yield. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the loss is recorded in
profit or loss.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial assets, whether significant or not, the assets are included in a
Company of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that
Company of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that
are Iindividually assessed for impairment for which an impairment loss is or
continues fo be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment. The impairment assessment is performed at each reporting date.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss, to the
extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at
the reversal date.

AFS
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, a significant or prelonged

decline in the fair value of the financial asset below its cost is an objective
evidence of impairment, resulting in the recognition of an impairment loss.
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(e) Financial instruments {continued)

v)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
AFS (continued)

If an AFS is impaired, an amount comprising the difference hetween its cost (net
of any principal repayment and ameortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss. Reversals of impaired losses on debts
instruments classified as AFS are reversed through profit or loss if the increase in
the fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an event ogcurring
after the impairment losses were recognised in profit or loss.

Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables are assessed at each reporting date for objective evidence
of impairment, as a result of one or multi events having an impact on the
estimated future cash flow of the assets.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the
Company reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly
and recognises that impairment loss in profit or loss. The Company gathers the
cbjective evidence that an insurance receivable is impaired using the same
process adopted for financial assets carried at amortised cosi. The impairment
loss is calculated under the same method used for these financial assets.

If in a subsequent period the fair value of insurance receivables increases and the
increase can be objectively related to events occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or less, the impairment loss is reversed to the extent that
the carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying amount would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.

{f) Other receivables from Malaysian Motor [nsurance Pool (“MMIP")

The Company's share of investment return of MMIP is recognised as receivable when the
right to receive is established. The advances to and receivables from MMIP are classified
as part of Other Receivables,

{g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits held at call with financial
institutions with original maturities of three months or less that are readily converiible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.
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(9)

0]

(4}

Cash and cash equivalents {continued)

The Company classifies the cash flows for the purchase and disposal of investments in
financial assets in its operating cash flows as the purchases are funded from the cash
flows associated with the origination of insurance contracts, net of the cash flows for
payment of insurance claims benefits.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation, either legal or
constructive, as a result of a past event and it is probable that an oufflow of resources will
be required to seftle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each date of the statement of financial position and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an ouiflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due io the passage of
time is recognised as finance cost expense.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events whose existence will be confirmed by uncertain future events beyond the control of
the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.

A contingent liability also arises in the extremely rare case where there is a liability that
cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company. The Company
does not recognise contingent assets but discloses their existence where inflows of
economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.

Equity instruments

Ordinary share capital

The Company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity. Ordinary shares
are recorded at nominal value.

Dividends on ordinary share capital
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when

they are approved by the Company's shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from
equity when they are paid. No provision is made for a proposed dividend.
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(k)

Product classification
The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. An
insurance contract under which the Company (insurer) has accepted significant insurance
risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if
a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.
As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk,
by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. The
recognition and measurement of insurance contracts are set out in Note 2(I) o the
financial statements.

Investment confracts are those contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk.

When insurance confracts contain both a financial risk component and a significant
insurance risk compaonent and the cash flows from the fwo components are distinct and
can be measured reliably, the underlying amounts are unbundied. Any premiums relating
to the insurance risk component are accounted for on the same basis as insurance
contracts and the remaining element is accounted for as a deposit through the statement
of financial position similar to investment contracts.

Insurance contracts
Premium from direct insurance conlract

Premium of insurance confracts is recognised in a financial year in respect of risks
assumed during that particular financial year.

Acquisition costs

The costs of acquiring and renewing insurance policies net of income derived from ceding
reinsurance premiums, are recognised as incurred and properly allocated to the financial
year in which it is probable they give rise to income.

Claims and expenses

Claims include all claims occurring during the financial year, whether reporied or not,
related external claims handling cost that are directly related to the processing and

settlement of claim, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any
adjustments to claim liabilities from previous financial year.
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)] Insurance contracts (continued)
Premium liabilities
Premium liabilities refer to the higher of:
(a) the aggregate of the unearned premium reserves (“UPR”); or

(b} the best estimate value of the insurer's unexpired risk reserves (“URR") at the
valuation date and the Provision of Risk Margin for Adverse Deviation ("PRAD")
calculated at the overall company level.

UPR represent the portion of the gross premiums of insurance policies written net of the
related reinsurance premiums ceded to qualified reinsurers that relate to the unexpired
periods of the policies at the end of the financial year.

UPR are computed with reference to the month of accounting for the premium on the
following bases:

{i) 25% method for marine and aviation carge, and transit business,
(i) time apportionment method for non-annual policies;
i) 1/24th method for all other classes of Malaysian general policies; and

(iv) 1/8th method for all classes of overseas inward business.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risks reserve ("URR”) and a
liability adequacy fest is performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of
expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The current
estimate of future contractual cash flow is a prospective estimate of the expected future
payments arising from future events insured under policies in force as at the valuation date
and also includes allowance for the insurer's expenses, including overheads and cost of
reinsurance, expected to be incurred during the unexpired period in administering these
policies and settling the relevant claims, and shall allow for expected future premium
refunds.

If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums less related

deferred acquisition costs is inadequate, the deficiency is recognised in profit or loss by
setting up a provision for liability adequacy.
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U

(m)

(n)

Insurance contracts (continued)
Claims liabifities

Claims liabilities are determined based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred
but not settled at the date of statement of financial position, whether reported or not,
together with related claims handling costs and reduction for the expected value of
salvage and other recoveries. Delays can be experienced in the notification and settlement
of certain types of claims, therefore, the ultimate cost of these claims cannot be known
with certainty at the date of statement of financial position.

The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claims
projection techniques based on empirical data and current assumptions at best estimate
and a PRAD calculated at the overall Company. The liability is not discounted for the time
value of money. No provision for equalisation or catastrophe reserves is recognised. The
liahilities are derecognised when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

Invesiment confract

Investment contract liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and
premiums are charged. These liabilities are initially measured at fair value being the
fransaction price excluding transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of the
contract. Subsequent measurement of investment contracts at amortised cost uses the
effective interest method. This method requires the determination of an interest rate (the
effective interest rate) that exactly discounts to the net carrying amount of the financial
liability, the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period if the holder has the option to
redeem the instrument earlier than maturity.

The Company re-estimates at each reporting date the expected future cash flows and
recalculates the carrying amount of the financial liability by calculating the present value of
estimated future cash flows using the financial liability's original effective interest rate. Any
adjustment is immediately recognised as income or expense in profit or loss.

Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its
businesses. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies.
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the
oufstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the reinsurer’s policies and
are in accordance with the related reinsurance contracts.

Reinsurance premiums ceded are recognised in the same accounting period as the
original policy to which the reinsurance relates.

Reinsurance commission income is recognised as revenue on a basis that is consistent
with the recognition of costs incurred on the acquisition of underlying insurance contracts.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from iis obligations to

policyholders. Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and
assumed reinsurance.
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()

(0)

Reinsurance {(continued)

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently
when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs
when there is objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial
recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Company may not receive all outstanding
amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable
impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment
loss is recorded in profit or loss.

The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for general
insurance contracts when applicable.

Premiums and claims on assumed facultative reinsurance are recognised as revenue or
expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct
business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business.
Premiums, claims and other transactions costs on assumed ftreaty reinsurance are
accourtted for upon notification by the ceding companies or upon receipt of the statement
of accounts.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounis
payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets or liabilites are derecognised when the contractual rights are
extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Reinsurance contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for
directly through the statement of financial position. These are deposit assets or financial
liabilities that are recognised based on the consideration paid or received less any explicit
identified premiums or fees to be retained by the reinsured. Investment income on these
contracts is accounted for using the effective yield method when accrued.

Other revenue recognition

(i} Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised on an accrual basis and
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(i) Investment income

Interest income from securities such government securities, bonds and loan
stocks are recognised using the effective interest rate method.

The interest income from fixed deposits with financial institutes, are recognised in
the financial statements on the accrual basis.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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{p) Foreign currencies

(i)

(ii)

Functional currency

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
an entity operates.

Transactions and balances in foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency (“foreign currencies”)
are translated to the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the date
of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.

Non-monetary items which are measured in terms of historical costs denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of
the transaction.

Non-moenetary items which are measured at fair values denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date when the
fair values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items and the
translation of monetary items are included in profit or [oss for the period.

When a gain or loss on a nen-monetary item is recognised direcily in other
comprehensive income, any comresponding exchange gain or loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in profit or loss, any corresponding exchange gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

(q) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term benefits

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary
benefits are recognised as expenses in the pericd in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Company.

Post-employment benefits
The Company pays fixed contributions to the Employees Provident Fund ("EPF™)
which is a defined contribution plan.

The Company's legal or constructive obligation is limited to the amount that it
agrees fo contribute to the EPF. The Company's contributions to the EPF are
charged to profit or loss in the period to which they relate. Once the confributions
have been paid, the Company has no further payment obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based long term incentive plan

The eligible employees of the Company participate in an equity-settled, share-
based long term incentive plan offered by its ultimate holding company, Chubb
Limited ("Chubb"). The long term incentive plan consists of a restricted share grant
plan, a restricted share option plan and an employee share participation plan.

Employees’ services received in exchange for the share-based long term incentive
plan are recognised as an expense in the Company's profit or loss over the
vesting period of the grant with a corresponding increase in equity reserves,

The annual expense is based on an amortised calculation that is reflective of the
current financial year's expense poriion of all share grants issued in the current
and prior financial years. There is no liability to the Company for the unamortised
portion of the share grants issued. The amortised calculation incorporates the fair
market value of Chubb's common stock at grant date, in determining the expense
amount.

At each date of statement of financial position, the Company revises its estimate
of the number of options that are expected to become vest. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in profit or loss and a
correspending adjustment to equity reserves over the remaining vesting period.

Income taxes

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. The income tax
expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’'s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relaies to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting pericd in the countries where the
Company operate and generate taxable income.,

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. This
liability is measured using the single best estimate of the most likely outcome.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the amounis attributed to assets and liabilities for tax purposes and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liahility in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affecis neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by Directors and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results. The
estimate and assumption that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment fo
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the financial year are outlined below.

(i}

Claims liabilities

Claims liabilities for each class of business are estimated by reference fo a variety
of estimation techniques, generally based on a statistical analysis of historical
experience which assumes an underlying pattern of claims development, claims
payment and the direct and indirect claims-related expenses. The claims liabilities
alsc include a provision of risk margin for adverse deviation ("PRAD"). PRAD is a
component of the value of the insurance liabilities which is set at a levei such that
there is a higher level of confidence (or probability) that the provisions will
ultimately be sufficient. For the purpose of this valuation basis, the level of
confidence is at 76% at an overall Company level. The final selected estimates
are based on a judgemental consideration of results of each method and
qualitative information, for example, the class of business, the maturity of the
portfolio and expected term to settlement of the class. Projections are based on
historical experience and external benchmarks where relevant.

The best estimate outstanding claims liabilities were assessed using four standard
actuarial valuation methods:

. Incurred Claim Development method

. Paid Claim Development method

. Bornhuetter-Fergusen method on incurred claims and paid claims
. Expected loss ratio method

The key assumptions and the sensitivity analysis of claims liabilities are disclosed
in Note 29 (e) to the financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {CONTINUED)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions {continued)

(ii)

Leases- extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and
equipment leases across the Company. These terms are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the
respective lessor.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances
fhat create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise
a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are
only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or
not terminated). The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances occurs which affects this assessment and that is within
the control of the lessee.
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PRCPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Office
equipment,
furniture
Freehold and Mator
land BuildingsComputers fittings  vehicles Total
RM'000 RM000 RM'0Q00 RM000 RM000 RM'000
Cost
At 1 January 2019 15,206 36,071 16,244 20,213 826 88,560
Additions - - 1,051 224 - 1,275
Disposals - - - (N {86) (87)
Write-offs - - {77) (25) - (102)
At 31 December 2019 15,206 36,071 17,218 20,411 740 89,646
Additions - - 1,707 137 - 1,844
Disposals - - - (24) - (24)
Write-offs - - {1,618) (274) - {1,892)
At 31 December 2020 15,206 36,071 17,307 20,250 740 89,574
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019 - 11,083 11,646 11,831 430 34,990
Charge for the financial year - 770 1,950 1,945 71 4,736
Disposals - - - (1) (61) {62)
Write-offs - - (77) (25) - (102)
At 31 December 2019 - 11,853 13,619 13,750 440 39,562
Charge for the financial year - 770 1,904 1,855 68 4,597
Disposals - - - (19) - (19}
Write-offs - - (1,6186) (210) - {1,826)
At 31 December 2020 - 12,623 13,807 15,376 508 42,314
Net carrying amount
31 December 2020 15,206 23,448 3,500 4,874 232 47,260
31 December 2019 15,206 24,218 3,699 6,661 300 50,084
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LEASES

The Company as a lessee

The Company leases various offices and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 to 5 years but may have extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

{a) Right-of-use assets
2020 2019
RM'000 RM’CQ0
Carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying assets:
Offices 1,114 1,869
Equipment 1,079 348
2,193 2,217
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the
financial year 1,474 253
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying assets:
Offices {1,161) {1,338)
Equipment (337) (391)
(1,498) {1,729)
(b) Lease liabilities
Current 377 478
Non-current 1,863 1,808
2,240 2,286
Interest expenses (included in finance cost) (130) (199)
Total cash outflows for leases (1,613) (1,860)
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LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Company as a lessor

The Company leases out its building under operating leases with renfals payable monthly. The
Company classifies it as operating lease as the lease does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee.

Rental income

2020
RM'000

1,362

2019

RM000

1,236

The following table sets out the maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted
lease payments to be received after the reporting date.

Within one year

Later than one year but not later than 3 years

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

As 1 January 2019
Additions
Expensed-off
Reclassification

As 31 December 2019
Additions
Expensed-off
Write-off
Reclassification

As 31 December 2020

Computer
Software
RM'000

12,635
346
1,002

13,973
(14)
864

14,823
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2020 2019
RM'0Q0 RM'000
1,362 1,362
738 2,100
2,100 3,462
Work-in-
Progress Total
RM’000 RM’000
703 13,238
905 1,251
(2) (2
(1,092) -
514 14,487
3,619 3,619
(43) {43)
- (14)
(864) -
3,226 18,049
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Computer
Software
RM'000
Accumulated amortisation
As 1 January 2019 10,695
Amortisation for the financial year 902
As 31 December 2019 11,597
Amaortisation for the financial year 1,024
Write-offs (14)
As 31 December 2020 12,607
Net carrying amount
31 December 2020 2,216

31 December 2019 2,376
Intangible assets comprise computer software.

INVESTMENTS

Malaysian Government Securities and guaranteed loans
Debt securities
Equity securities

AFS

The following invesiments mature after 12 months:

Malaysian Government Securities and guaranteed loans
Debt securities

53

Work-in-
Progress Total
RM'000 RM'000
- 10,685
- 902
- 11,597
- 1,024
- (14)
- 12,607
3,226 5,442
514 2,890
2020 2019
RM’000 RM000
714,567 782,327
600,182 450,733
375 375
1,315,124 1,233,435
1,315,124 1,233,435
551,371 655,432
482,796 344,246

1,034,167

999,678
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) AFS
Fair value

Unguoted equity securities

Unguoted debt securities

Malaysian Government Securities
and guaranteed loans

(b) Carrying values of financial instruments

At 1 January 2019
Purchases
Maturities
Disposals
Realised gains in statement of profit and loss
Fair value losses recerded in:
Other comprehensive income
Net change in interest receivables
Accretion of discount

At 31 December 2019

Purchases
Maturities
Disposals
Realised gains in statement of profit and loss
Fair value losses recorded in:
Other comprehensive income
Net change in interest receivables
Amortisation of premium

At 31 December 2020

54

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
375 375
600,182 450,733
714,567 782,327

1,315,124 1,233,435

AFS
RM'000

1,199,639
353,321
(280,000)
(55,363)
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14,835
766
181

1,233,435

750,187

(290,000)

(401,613)
7,512

9,328
(637)
(2,088)

1,315,124
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS {CONTINUED)

(c)

Estimation of fair values

The estimated fair values of corporate debts securities and Malaysian government
securities are based on the average indicative mid markets prices obtained from at least
three licensed financial institutions.

The fair value of the unguoted equity securities in corporations were delermined to
approximate the carrying amount as this is immaterial in the context of the financial
staternents.

Fair value hierarchy

Included in the quoted market price category are financial instrumenis that are measured
in whole or in part by reference to published quotes in an active market. A financial
instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available
from an exchange, secondary market via dealer and broker, pricing service or regulatory
agency and those price represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis {Level 1).

Financial instruments measured using a valuation technique based on assumptions that
are supported by prices from observable current market transactions are instruments for
which pricing is obtained via pricing services but where prices have not been determined
in an active market and instruments with fair values based on broker quotes {Level 2}.

Financial instruments that are valued not based on observable market data are
categorised as Level 3.

Fair value investments 2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000

Valuation techniques

- market observable inputs {Level 2} 1,314,749 1,233,060

- unobservable inputs (Level 3) 375 375

1,315,124 1,233,435

There are no investments that are valued at Level 1 category.
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REINSURANCE ASSETS

Note 2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Reinsurance of insurance contracts 15
Claims liabilities . 235,593 202,430
Premium liabilities 13,426 19,895
249,019 222,325
Current 111,940 93,768
Non-current 137,079 128,557
249,019 222,325
INSURANCE RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Due premiums including agents/brokers and
ce-insurers balances 84,018 107,223
Due from reinsurers and cedants 33,962 22,370
117,980 129,593
Allowance for impairment (11,990) {14,093)
105,990 115,500
Current 105,990 115,500
Non-current - -
105,990 115,500
Financial assets
Gross amounts of recognised financial assets, net of 125,647 140,470
allowance for impairment
Less: Gross amounts of recognised financial liabilities
set off in the statement of financial position (Note 18) {19,657) (24,970)
Net amounts of financial assets presented in the statement
of financial position 105,990 115,500

There are no financial liabilities subjected to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement financial instruments received as collateral, nor any cash collateral pledged or received
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: NIL).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

OTHER RECEIVABLES

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000

Amount due from Malaysian Motor Insurance Pool (“MMIP")
- Cash contribution to MMIP 13,859 16,859
- Assets held under MMIP 33,385 32,030
Deposits 796 775
Other receivables 2,506 10,838
50,546 60,502
Current 49,750 59,727
Non-current 796 775
50,546 60,502

As at 31 December 2020, there is a net receivable of RM17,484,000 (2019: RM14,536,000 net
receivable) from MMIP, after setting off the amounts receivable from MMIP against the
Company's share of MMIP's claims and premiums liabilities of RM28,760,000 (2019:
RM34,353,000) included in Note 15 to the financial statements.

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate fair values at the reporting date.

SHARE CAPITAL
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
lssued and paid up:
100,000,000 ordinary shares with no par value
At beginning and end of financial year 100,000 100,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RETAINED EARNINGS

Under the single-tier tax system which came into effect on 1 January 2008, companies are not
required to have tax credits under Section 108 of the Income Tax Act, 1867 for dividend payment
purposes. Dividends paid under this system are single-tier dividends and are tax exempt on the
hands of shareholders.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company is already under the single-tier tax system. The Company
also has no tax exempt income available for future distribution of tax exempt dividends.

The Company may distribute single tier tax exempt dividend to its shareholder out of its retained
earnings. Pursuant to Section 51 (1) of the Financial Services Act 2013, the Company is required
fo obtain BNM written approval prior to declaring or paying any dividend.

Pursuant to the RBC Framework for Insurers, the Company shall not pay dividends if its Capital
Adequacy Ratio position is less than its internal target capital level or if the payment of dividend
would impair its Capital Adequacy Ratio position to below its internal target.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FAIR VALUE RESERVES

The fair value reserves are in respect of unrealised gains on available-for-sale investments, net of
tax.

EQUITY RESERVE

The eligible employees of the Company participate in an equity-settled, share-based long term
incentive plan offered by its ultimate holding company, Chubb. The long term incentive plan
consists of a restricied share grant plan, a restricted share option plan and an employee share

participation plan.

Restricted Share Grant Plan

Under Chubb's long term incentive plan, 3,262 restricted ordinary shares were awarded during the
financial year ended 31 December 2020 to eligible employees of the Company. These shares vest
at various dates over a 4 year period from the grant dates and any unvested shares are cancelled
on termination of the employment of the eligible employees. This plan is a Company scheme with
expenses incurred under the scheme charged out by Chubb to the Company on an annual basis.
The annuai expense is based on an amortised calculation that is reflective of the current financial
year's expense portion of all restricted share grants issued in the current and prior financial years,
and is consistent with the treatment required by MFRS 2: Share-based payment. There is no liability
to the Company for the unamortised portion of the restrictive stock grants issued. The amortised
calculation incorporates the fair market value of Chubb’'s common stock at grant date, in
determining the expense amount. Expected fufure dividend payments in relation to the restrictive
stock grants issued are made directly by Chubb to the eligible employees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

EQUITY RESERVE (CONTINUED)

Restricted Share Option Plan

Under Chubb's long term incentive plan, restriclive share options were granted to eligible
employees of the Company. The exercisable price of these options is the fair market value at issue
date. These options vest at varicus dates over a 3 year period from the grant date and any
unvested options are cancelled on termination of employment. This plan is a Company scheme with
expenses incurred under the scheme charged out hy Chubb to the Company on an annual basis.
Any option not exercised or cancelled pursuant to the terms of plan will be forfeited by the tenth
anniversary from the date of grant.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted average
exercise prices are as follows:

2020 2019

Average Average

exercise exercise
price  Share price  Share
per share options per share options
RM Units RM Units
At beginning of financial year 36,705 37,873
Granted 620.33 4,111 554.88 3,899
Forfeited 565.39 (1,270) 496.02 {450)
Exercised 396.29 (3,326) 376.88  (4,257)
Transferred out (312) (360)
At end of financial year 35,908 36,705

Out of the 35,908 outstanding options, 29,049 options were exercisable. Options granted in 2020
resulted in 4,111 shares options being issued at exercise price of RM 620.33 each. 3,326 options
were exercised in 2020 at exercise price of RM 396.29.
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EQUITY RESERVE (CONTINUED)

Restricted Share Option Plan (continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the financial year have the following expiry date and
exercise prices:

Exercise price Share options

per share 2020 2019

RM Units Units

2020 208.15 - 1,060
2021 258.86 4,010 2,898
2022 303.12 2,654 2,654
2023 352.87 3,325 3,325
2024 399.86 3,615 4,117
2025 474.33 3,875 4,383
2028 489.25 4,233 5,377
2027 574.46 4,603 5,461
2028 591.24 3,053 3,631
2029 553.34 . 3,274 3,899
2030 620.33 3,366 -

35,908 36,705

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the financial year determined using the
Black-Scholes valuation model was RM84.57 per option. The significant inputs into the mode! were
share price of RM620.33, at the grant date, the exercise price shown above, volatility of 18.00%,
dividend yield of 2.08%, an expected option life of 5 years and on annual risk-free interest rate of
1.18%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously compounded share
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last three years.

Employee Share Purchase Plan

The Company collects monies from local eligible employees and acquires ordinary shares in Chubb
on behalf of the employees on a bi-annual basis. The price paid by the eligible employees is set at
a discount of 15% to the fair value of the ordinary shares at the date of acquisition; this discount is
incurred at the Company level by Chubb and not reimbursed from the Company.

The total expenses of employees equity-settled share-based long term incentive plan for the
financial year was RM4,397,992 (2019: RM2,202,985).
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 PECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2020 2019

RM'000 RM'000

Investment contract liabilities 579 511
Ai beginning of financial year 511 590
Deposits 1,328 1,847
Withdrawals (1,260} (1,926)
At end of financial year 579 511

The carrying amount of the investment contracts liabilities approximate fair value,

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
At beginning of financial year 20,566 23,301
Recognised in;
Profit or loss (Note 25) (5,909) 825
Other comprehensive income (2,239) (3,560)

At end of financial year 12,418 20,566

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes related to the same
authority. The following amounts determined after appropriate set off are shown in the statements
of financial position:

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:

Deferred tax assets 12,418 20,566
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

INSURANCE PAYABLES
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Due to agents and intermediaries : 39,828 41,618
Due to reinsurers and cedants 16,453 30,683

56,281 72,301

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate fair value at the reporting date. All amounts
are payable within one year.

2020 2019
RM'Q00 RM000
Financial liabilities
Gross amounts of recognised financial liabilities 75,938 97,271
Less: Gross amounts of recognised financial assets
set off in the statement of financial position (Note 9) (19,657) (24,970)
Net amounts of financial liabilities presented in the statement

of financial position 56,281 72,301

There are no financial asseis subjected to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement financial instruments received as collateral, nor any cash collateral pledged or received
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: NIL).

67



19

20

Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

OTHER PAYABLES

Accrued liabilities
Payroll liabilities
Deposit held on bonds
Other payables

Current
Non-current

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate fair value at the reporting date.

NET EARNED PREMIUMS

(a) Gross earned premiums

General insurance contracts (Note 15(ii))
Change in premium liabilities

(b) Premium ceded

General insurance contracts (Note 15(ii))
Change in premium lfabilities

Net earned premiums

68

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
55,077 66,193
8,720 8,727
73,063 69,394
34,299 27,500
171,159 171,814
150,449 150,857
20,710 20,957
171,159 171,814
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
700,018 849,602
60,897 12,511
760,915 862,113
(192,698) (219,953)
(6,469) {2,969)
(199,167) (222,922)
561,748 639,191
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

NET INVESTMENT INCOME

AFS

Interest income

Dividend income

- unquoted equity securities in Malaysia
Cash and cash equivalents interest income
(Amortisation of premium)/Accretion of discount
Other investment income from MMIP
Investment advisory fees and custodian charges

REALISED GAINS

Property and equipment;
Realised losses

AFS
Realised gains:
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia

Foreign exchange:
Realised gains

COMMISSION INCOME

Commission income related to insurance contracts

69

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
49,190 49,433
132 66
5,374 9,540
(2,089) 181
2,957 3,663
(1,919) (1,898)
53,645 60,985
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
{3) (4)
7,512 56
220 1,039
7,729 1,091
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
41,207 52,975
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

Employee benefits expense

Directors’ remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration®

- Statutory audits

- Other services

Depreciation of property and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Property and equipment written off

Intangible assets expensed off

Amortisation of intangible assets

EDP expenses

(Decrease)increase in allowance for
impairment of insurance receivables

Bad debts written off

Bad debts recovered

Advertising

Printing and stationery

Electricity and water

Postage and telephone

Regional technical service charges

Outscource services fees

Other expenses

*Including out-of-pocket expenses.
(a) Employee benefits expense

Wages and salaries

Social security contributions

Contributions to defined contribution plan,
EPF

Other benefits

70

=
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=
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24(a)
24(b)

o

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
90,737 92,660
844 768
413 428
58 66
4,597 4,736
1,498 1,729
66 -
43 2
1,024 902
15,523 17,705
(2,103) 1,327
4,360 270
(2,223) (717)
13,712 19,764
2,176 6,606
1,119 1,672
1,159 1,895
14,192 13,577
7,003 10,290
11,810 15,956
166,008 189,636
63,405 66,170
459 499
9,890 10,015
16,983 15,976
90,737 92,660




Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

The Directors’ remuneration and other emoluments are as follows:

Fees Others Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2020
Executive Directors:
Olivier Bouchard 71 17 88
Non-executive Directors:
YBhg Tan Sri Leo Moggie 104 23 127
Dato’ Sri Abdul Hamidy bin Abdul Hafiz 134 33 167
Song Yam Lim 118 29 147
Gregory Jerome Gerald Fernandes 134 33 167
Susan Yuen Su Min 119 29 148
Total Directors’ remuneration 680 168 844
Fees Others Total
RM’000 RM000 RM'000
2019
Executive Directors:
Qlivier Bouchard 69 9 78
Non-executive Directors:
YBhg Tan Sri Leo Moggie 129 29 158
Dato’ Sri Abdul Hamidy bin Abdul Hafiz 118 29 147
Song Yam Lim 108 24 132
Gregory Jerome Gerald Fernandes 121 29 150
Susan Yuen Su Min 83 20 103
Total Directors' remuneration 628 140 768
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(b) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

The number of executive and non-executive Directors whose total remuneration received
during the financial year that fall within the following bands ars as follows:

Number of Directors
2020 2019

Executive Directors:
Below RM100,000 1 1
RM100,001-RM4,000,000 - -

Non-executive Directors:
Below RM100,000 - -
RM100,001-RM200,000 5 5

{c) Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are those people defined as having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, either directly or
indirectly.

The details of remuneration received by Chief Executive Officer during the year was as
follows:
2020 2019
RM'000 RM’000
Fixed remuneration
Cash-based 1,856 1,780
Benefits-in-kind and other remuneration 364 395

Variable remuneration

Cash-based 480 503
Shares and share-linked instruments {Deferred) 812 920
Benefits-in-kind and other remuneration 95 99

3,607 3,697
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(c) Compensation of Key Management Personnel {continued)

The compensation of the key management personnel including Chief Executive Officer are

as follows:

2020 2019
RM000 RM000
Fixed remuneration
Cash-based 9,416 8,983
Contributions to defined contribution plan,EPF 864 829
Benefits-in-kind and other remuneration 614 692
Variable remuneration
Cash-based 969 1,349
Contributions to defined contribution plan,EPF 63 97
Shares and share-linked instruments {Deferred) 1,542 1,952
Benefits-in-kind and other remuneration 239 277
13,707 14,179
All Senior Officers have received variable remuneration during the financial year.
Number of officers Amount (RM'000)
2020 2019 2020 2019
Guaranteed bonus - - - -
Sign-on awards 1 - 19 -
Severance payments - - - -
2020 2019
RM’000 RM’000
Deferred remuneration
Qutstanding shares and share-linked instruments
as at 31 December 3,220 3,734

Shares and share-linked instruments paid during the year
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DPECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

TAXATION
2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Current income tax:
Current financial year 27,365 31,316
Under/{over)-provision in prior financial years 35 {1,089)
27,400 30,227
Deferred tax (Note 17):
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 5,909 (825)
33,309 ‘ 29,402

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutery income tax
rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate is as foliows:

2020 2019

RM'000 RM'000

Profit before tax 129,128 117,122
Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2019:24%) 30,991 28,109
Income not subject to tax (575) (582)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,858 2,964
Under/(over)-provision of tax in prior financial years 35 {1,089)
Tax expense for the financial year 33,309 29,402
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Registration No.
197001000564 (8827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit for the financial year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the financial year.

- 2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders 95,819 87,720
Weighted average number of shares in issue 100,000 100,000
Basic earnings per share {sen) 95.82 87.72
CASH FLOWS
Note 2020 2019
RM'00Q RM'Q00
Profit before tax 129,128 117,122
Investment income (53,645) (60,985)
Realised gain on AFS investments (7,512) (56)
Realised gain on foreign exchange (220) (1,039)
Depreciation of property and equipment 4 4,597 4,736
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5 1,408 : 1,729
Amortisation of intangible assets 6 1,024 a0z
Interest charge on lease liabilities 5 130 199
l.oss on disposal of property and equipment 3 4
Property and equipment written off 66 -
Intangible assets expensed off 43 2
(Decrease)/increase in allowance for impairment
of insurance receivahles (2,103) 1,327
Bad debts written off 4,380 270
Employees share-based long term incentive plan 3,952 2,155
Changes in working capital:
{(increase)/decrease in reinsurance assets (26,694) 3,445
Decrease in insurance receivables 7,253 16,216
Decrease in other receivables 10,903 7,367
{Decrease)/increase in insurance contract liabilities (224) 7,018
{Decrease)/increase in insurance payables (16,020) 3,627
Decrease in lease liabilities (37) -
(Decrease)/increase in other payables (435) 5,432
Net increase in AFS investments (67,574) (17,958)
Increase/(decrease) in investment contract liabilities 68 (79)
Cash {used in)/generated from cperating activities (11,439) 91,433
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

The related parties of, and their relationship with the Company, are as follows:

Company

Chubb Limited

Chubb INA International Holdings
Ltd

Chubb Tempest Reinsurance Ltd

Chubb Tempest Reinsurance Ltd,
Labuan Branch

Chubb Asia Pacific Pte Ltd

Chubb Services UK Limited

Cover Direct, Inc

Chubb Insurance Hong Kong
Limited

Chubb IT Pevelopment Centre
Sdn Bhd

ACE INA Overseas Insurance
Co Ltd

Chubb INA Overseas Insurance
Co Lid

Chubb INA Holdings Inc

Chubb International Management
Corporation

ACE American Fire and Marine
Insurance Company Korea

Counfry of
incorporation

Relationship

Switzerland

United States
Bermuda

Labuan
Singapore
United Kingdom
United States
Hong Kong

Malaysia

Bermuda
Bermuda

United States
United States

Korea

Ultimate holding company

Immediate holding company
Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Subsidiary of immediate holding company
Subsidiary of immediate holding company
Subsidiary of immediate holding company

Subsidiary of immediate holding company

Subsidiary of immediate holding company

Subsidiary of immediate holding company
Subsidiary of immediate holding company

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Subsidiary of immediate holding company

Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

{a} Inthe normal course of business, the Company undertakes at agreed terms and prices, various
transactions with its ultimate holding company and related companies, being subsidiaries of
Chubb Limited ("Chubb Company”).

The related party balances as at the date of the statement of financial pasition and significant
related party transactions arising from normal business transactions during the financial year

are set out below.

Significant related party outstanding balances:

Chubb Company

Insurance receivables

ACE INA Overseas Insurance Co Ltd
Chubb Insurance Hong Kong Limited
Chubb INA Qverseas Insurance Co Ltd

Chubb Tempest Reinsurance Lid

Chubb Tempest Reinsurance Ltd, Labuan Branch
Other related companies within Chubb Company

76

Country

Bermuda
Hong Kong
Bermuda
Bermuda
Labuan
Others

2020
RM'000

13,839

376
1,247
1,272

10,825

119

3,631
562
238
395

1,940

496
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Significant related party outstanding balances {continued):

Chubb Company

Other receivables
Chubb INA International Holdings Ltd
Chubhb Asia Pacific Pte Lid
Other related companies within Chubb Company

Insurance payables
Chubb Tempest Reinsurance Lid, Labuan Branch
ACE INA Overseas Insurance Co Ltd
Chubb Insurance Hong Kong Limited
Other related companies within Chubb Company

Other payables
Chubb Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
Chubb Services UK Limited
Cover Direct, Inc
Chubb IT Development Centre Sdn Bhd
Chubb INA Holdings Inc
Chubb INA International Holdings Ltd
Other related companies within Chubb Company

Significant related party transactions:

Chubb Company

Premium income
ACE INA Overseas Insurance Co Ltd
Chubb Insurance Hong Kong Limited
Chubb INA Overseas Insurance Co Ltd
Chubb Tempest Reinsurance Lid
Other related companies within Chubb Company

Premium ceded
Chubb Tempest Reinsurance Ltd, Labuan Branch
Other related companies within Chubb Company

Commission income

Chubb Tempest Reinsurance Lid, Labuan Branch
Other related companies within Chubb Company

77

Country

United States
Singapore
Others

Lahuan
Bermuda
Hong Kong
Others

Singapoere

United Kingdom

United States
Malaysia
United States
United States
Others

Bermuda
Hong Kong
Bermuda
Bermuda
Others

Labuan
QOthers

Labuan
Others

2020 2019
RM000  RM'000
1,432 2,462
52 40
1,293 1,970
87 452
(2,592)  (7,914)
- (6,832)
(1,435) -
(278) (278)
(879) (804)
(24,403)  (21,225)
(14,073)  (13,680)
(2,719)  (3,630)
(1.289)  {1,240)
(4.530)  (1,077)
(220) (535)
(658) (635)
(914) (428)
34,820 20,874
2,754 4,559
8,271 8,697
9,983 9,416
11,049 5,480
1,863 1,722
(139,087) (143,678)
(137,954)  (141,156)
(1133)  (2,522)
27,213 33,520
26,871 33,124
342 396
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Country 2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Significant related party transactions (continued):
Chubb Company
Commission expenses (1,289) (1,352)
Chubb Insurance Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong (810) (731)
Other related companies within Chubb Company Others (479) (621)
Claims recoveries 34,440 27,706
Chubb Tempest Reinsurance Ltd, Labuan Branch Labuan 33,355 27,608
Other related companies within Chubb Company Others 1,085 928
Claims paid (1,235) (178)
Chubb Insurance Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong (1,235) {169)
Gther related companies within Chubb Company Others - )]
Accounting and administration services
Chubb IT Development Centre Sdn Bhd Malaysia 240 240
Rental and parking income
Chubb IT Development Centre Sdn Bhd Malaysia 1,434 1,308
EDP system charges (8,710) (6,256)
Chubb Services UK Limited United Kingdom  (2,817) (3,609)
Cover Direct, Inc United States (1,076) (1,015)
Chubb IT Development Centre Sdn Bhd Malaysia {4,573) (1,083)
Chubb INA Holdings Inc United States (224) (533)
ACE American Fire and Marine Insurance
Company Korea Korea {20) (16)
Technical support and consultancy services (14,192) {13,759)
Cover Direct, Inc United States - {182)
Chubb Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore (14,192)  (13,577)
Service fees and others (265) (109)
Chubb International Management Corporation United States {104) (109)
Cover Direct, Inc United States {161) -

(b} The remuneration of directors and other key management personnel during the financial year
are set out in Note 24 to the financial staternents.
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company recognises the importance of effective risk management practices and embedding
risk culture within the Company and therefore, it is the commitment of the Company to integrate
Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM") into strategic planning and decision making.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Risk Appetite

The risk appetite outlines the degree of risk the Company is willing to assume in pursuit of
its strategic objectives against the capital exposed to the risk. The risk appetite is formulated
by the Board and is reviewed annually. The risk appetite articulates the risks, controls and
returns for material exposures. The Company in general has a conservative risk appetite
with a prudent Risk Management Framework in place.

Risk Management Framework

The Company's RMF describes the role of ERM and helps the Company to achieve its
business objectives, meet its corporate obligations and at the same time maintain the
Company's reputation.

The RMF puts in place a structure and a process to mitigate risks as they are identified or
emerge by assessing them against{ the Company's established appetiie and tolerance
levels, thus helping to protect and maintain the capifal in the interests of all key
stakeholders.

Risk Governance and Oversight

The responsibility and oversight of ERM rests with the Board of Directers ("Board”), with the
ERC responsible for oversight, policy development, execution and maintaining the
appropriate infrastructure. Primary ownership for the daily execution of risk management
and confrols rests with the business and cperating units.

The Board has ultimate risk management responsibility and is also responsible for providing
the overall Company direction and strategy, setting financial objectives and for monitoring
compliance with regulatory requirements and ethical standards. Chubb’s Board has a
specific charter setting out its duties and responsibilities. In discharging its responsibility for
overall risk management and control, the Board delegates a number of key functions to the
BRMC.

The ERC is charged with the responsibility of monitoring, assessing and reporting on risk
related activities and meets at least once a quarter, and reports to the BRMC through the
Chief Risk Officer ("CRO"). Its objective is to establish, maintain and monitor compliance
within a sound risk management framework that integrates risk management into all
activities of the business. lts role is to provide advice and assistance including submitting
recommendations to the Board on risk management.
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

1.1

Capital Management and Capital Adequacy

Prudent capital management is the foundation for ensuring the Company is able to fulfil its
financiai obligations to its shareholders, policyholders, regulators and other key
stakeholders. The Board is ultimately responsible for determining that the Company's capital
is adequate after taking into account the Company's strategic objectives, size and the
complexity of its business.

The Company has separately documented its Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process ("ICAAP") to ensure that the capital held is adequate based on the Company's risk
profile, business mix and complexity of operations. ICAAP outlines the procedures, systems,
controls and personnel to identify, measure, monitor and manage the risks arising from
capital related activities of the Company. Capital Management is a fundamental aspect of
risk management. Capilal adequacy assessments and stress tests are conducted on a
regular basis, to ensure that sufficient capital is held to meet the minimum regulatory
requirement with an additional buffer to withstand a range of adverse or extreme risk event
scenarios.

Major Risks

The Company considers insurance risks, financial risks and operational risks as its major
risks.

Insurance Risk

The Company has in place underwriting guidelines which ensure that underwriting risk
undertaken adhere to proper control procedures, to mitigate the Company's exposure to
potential financial liabilities resulting from incurring higher claims cost than expected.

This is due to the nature of claims which can be unpredictable in frequency and severity,
and the risk of change in legal or economic conditions affecting insurance pricing and
conditions of insurance or reinsurance cover.

The underwriting and claims monitoring programme incorporates standards for underwriting
procedures, policy retention limits, use of reinsurance and the setting of claims reserves.
Underwriting standards are established to manage the initial insurability of customers.
Renewal underwriting standards are in place for business that renews on a periodic basis.

Reinsurance risk

In the normal course of business, the Company limits the amount of loss on any one policy
by reinsuring certain levels of risk with other reinsurersfinsurers. Reinsurance does not
discharge the Company's liability as the primary insurer. Failure of reinsurers to honour their
obligations could result in losses to the Company. In order to minimise losses from
reinsurance insolvencies, the Company's reinsurance arrangement is in line with BNM's
JPI/GPI 22 on “Guidelines on General Reinsurance Arrangement”.
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197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

(e) Major Risks (continued)
1 Insurance Risk {continued)

1.2 Concentration risk

The table below sets out the concentration of the Company’s general insurance business's
gross written premium by lines of business.

2020 2019
Re- Re-

Gross insurance Net Gross insurance Net

RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000  RM000 RM'000

Fire 155,377 {73,554) 81,823 176,592 (76,677) 99,915

Motor 184,662 (5,541) 179,121 238,931 {6,506) 232,425
Marine, aviation

and transit 52,375 {18,519) 33,856 66,789  (24,885) 41,904

Miscellaneous 307,604 {95,084) 212,520 367,290 {111,885} 255405

700,018 (192,698) 507,320 849,602 (219,953) 629,649

The table below sets out the concentration of the Company's insurance contract liabilities —
claims liabilities by lines of business.

2020 2019
Re- Re-

Gross insurance Net Gross insurance Net

RM'000 RM'000 RM'0Q0 RM'000 RM000 RM'000

Fire 138,740 (64,658) 74,082 135,512  (62,624) 72,888

Motor 234,647 (11,179} 223,468 249,908 (10,614) 239,294
Marine, aviation

and transit 110,718 (60,681) 50,037 68,148  (30,310) 37,838

Miscellaneous 266,061 (99,075) 166,986 235,925 (98,882) 137,043

750,166 (235,593) 514,573 689,493 (202,430) 487,063

81



29

Registration No.
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CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK {(CONTINUED)

(e)
1

1.3

1.4

Major Risks (continued)
Insurance Risk (continued)

Basis of estimates

The principal assumptions underlying the estimates of liabilities is that the Company's future
claim development will follow a similar pattern to the past claims development experience.
This includes assumptions in respect of average claim costs, claims handling costs, and
claim inflation factors and average number of claims for each accident years.

Allowance was made for “pure IBNR" {late reported claims) and Incurred but Not Enough
Reported (“IBNER"} (developmeni of known claims) and reopened claims as well as
expected future claims inflations.

The Company has based its risk margin for adverse deviation for the provision for unexpired
risks and insurance contract liabilities at a minimum 75% of sufficiency, according to the
requirement set by BNM under the RBC Framework.

Key assumptions

The principal assumptions underlying the estimation of liabilities is that the Company's
future claims development will follow a similar pattern to past claims development
experience. This includes assumptions in respect of average claim costs, claim handling
costs, claim inflation factors and average number of claims for each accident year.

Additional qualitative judgements are used to assess the extent to which past trends may
not apply in the future, for example, isolated occurrence, changes in market factors such as
public attitude to claiming, economic conditions, as well as internal factors, such as, portfolio
mix, policy conditions and claims handling procedures. Judgement is further used to assess
the extent to which external factors, such as judicial decisions and government legisiation,
affect the estimates.

Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include variation in interest
rates, delays in settlement and changes in foreign currency rates,
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CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED})
{e) Maijor Risks (continued)

1 Insurance Risk {(continued)

1.5 Sensitivity analysis

The analysis below is performance for reascnably possible movements in key assumptions
with all other assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities,
profit after tax and equity. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in
determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in
assumptions, assumptions had to he changed on an individual basis.

There are no significant changes to the key assumptions used. The effect of this change in
assumption is disclosed in Note 15({i) to the financial statements.

Impact on Impact on Impact on
Change in gross nef profit Impact on
assumptions liabilities liahilities after tax equity #
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM 000

31 December 2020

Ultimate loss ratio for

the latest accident year +10% 45,660 31,702 (24,094) (24,094)
Average claims

handling expenses +10% 2,696 2,696 (2,049) (2,049)
PRAD* +10% 6,607 4,450 (3,382) (3,382)

31 December 2019

Ultimate loss ratio for

the latest accident year +10% 53,640 39,584 (30,084) (30,084)
Average claims

handling expenses +10% 2,344 2,344 {1,781) (1,781)
PRAD* +10% 5,958 4,133 (3,141) (3,141)

# Impact on equity reflects adjustments for tax, when applicable.
* Provision for Risk of Adverse Deviation
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED}

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

(e)
1

1.6

Major Risks {continued)
Insurance Risk {continued)

Claims development table

The following tables show the estimate of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims
notified and IBNR for each successive accident year at each reporting date, together with
cumulative payments to-date.

The table provides a historical perspective on the adequacy of the unpaid claims estimates
established in previous years. The Company gives consideration to the probability and
magnitude of future experience being more adverse than assumed and exercises a degree
of caution in setting reserve when there is considerable uncertainty. Generally, the
uncertainty associated with ultimate claims experience in an accident year is greatest when
the accident year is at an early stage of development and the margin necessary to provide
the necessary confidence of adequacy of provision is relatively at its highest.

The Company believes that the estimate of the total claims outstanding as at 31 December

2020 is adequate. However, due to the inherent uncertainties in the reserving process, it
cannot be assured that such balances will ultimately prove to be adequate.
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Registraﬁon No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK {(CONTINUED)

{e)
2

2.1

Major Risks (continued)
Financial Risk

The Board recognises the Company's exposure to business, economic and financial risks
and the need to develop and implement measures to mitigate the risks identified as having
potentially adverse impact on the Company's operations and impairment of its financial
strength. The Board has assumed the primary responsibility of developing and implementing
the Company's risk management program by evaluating, managing and monitoring the
principal risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from a failure of a debtor to honour its
obligations to the Company.

The Company manages its credit risk in respect of receivables by establishing defined
tolerance on credit period, putting in place collection procedures and rigorously monitoring its
credit portfolio.

In terms of exposures to debt securities, the Company maintains a diversified portfolio of

investments in government guaranteed and minimum A-rated financial instruments at the
time of purchase issued by companies with strong credit ratings.

Credit exposure

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components in the
statement of financial position.

2020 2019

RM'000 RM'000

AFS 1,314,749 1,233,060
Reinsurance assets — claims liabilities 235,593 202,430
Insurance receivables 105,990 115,500
Other receivables * 49,472 59,454
Cash and cash equivalents 259,267 290,411
1,965,071 1,900,855

*Excluding prepayments which are not subject to credit risk.
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

29 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

{e) Major Risks (continued)
2  Financial Risk (continued)

2.1 Credit risk {continued)

Credit exposure by credit rating

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company by
classifying assets according to the credit ratings of counterparties.

Neither past- Not past- Past due

due nor due but and
impaired impaired impaired Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
31 December 2020
AFS 1,314,749 - - 1,314,749
Reinsurance assets — claims liabilities 235,503 - - 235,593
Insurance receivables 16,898 61,519 39,563 117,980
Allowance for impairment - (115) {11,875) (11,990)
Other receivahles 49,472 - - 49,472
Cash and cash equivalents 259,267 - - 259,267
1,875,979 61,404 27,688 1,965,071
31 December 2019
AFS 1,233,060 - - 1,233,060
Reinsurance assets — claims liabilities 202,430 - - 202,430
Insurance receivables 15,749 62,725 51,119 129,593
Allowance for impairment - (318) (13,775) (14,093)
Other receivables 59,454 - - 59,454
Cash and cash equivalents 290,411 - - 290,411
1,801,104 62,407 37,344 1,900,855
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

29 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWOQORK (CONTINUED)

(e) Major Risks (continued)
2 Financial Risk {continued)

2.1 Credit rigsk (continued)
The ageing analysis of insurance receivables is as follows:

Not past- Past due Past due

Neither due but and and
past due impaired impaired impaired
nor impaired 0-3 months 3-6 months >6 months Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000
31 December 2020
Insurance receivables 16,898 61,519 13,663 25900 117,980
Allowance for impairment - (115) {122) (11,753)  (11,990)
16,898 61,404 13,541 14,147 105,990
31 December 2019
Insurance receivables 15,749 62,949 22,815 28,080 129,593
Allowance for impairment - {318) (126) (13,649} (14,093)
15,749 62,631 22,689 14,431 115,500

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company
by classifying assets according to the Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC (“S&P"),
Rating Agency of Malaysia's ("RAM"} or Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad's (*“MARC”)
credit rating of counterparties. AAA is the highest possible rating.

Government
Guaranteed AAA AA A BBB Not rated Total

RM'000 RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM000

31 December 2020

AFS 714,566 326,436 264,470 - 9,277 - 1,314,749
Reinsurance assets
- Claims liabilities - - 161,202 70,216 72 4103 235,593
Insurance receivables - - 12,536 2,146 2 91,306 105,990
Other receivables - - - - - 49,472 49,472
Cash and cash

Equivalents - 216,794 7,964 33,025 91 1,393 259,267

714,566 543,230 446,172 105,387 9,442 146,274 1,965,071
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

r 29 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK {(CONTINUED)
(e} Maijor Risks {continued)
" 2 Financial Risk (continued)
2.1 Credit risk (continued)
Government
Guaranteed AAA AA A BBB Not rated Total
RM'00C RM'000 RM'O00 RM000 RMW000 RM000 RM000
31 December 2019
AFS 782,327 216,445 215,516 10,438 8,334 - 1,233,060
Reinsurance assets
- Claims liabilities - - 131,678 62,299 27 8,526 202,430
Insurance receivables - - 591 4,737 8 110,164 115,500
Other receivables - - - - - 59454 59,454
Cash and cash
Equivalents - 247,791 7,747 33,650 179 1,144 290,411
782,327 464,236 355,432 111,024 8,548 179,288 1,900,855
Impaired financial assets
As at 31 December 2020, insurance receivables of RM11,990,000 (2019: RM14,093,000)
were impaired based on individual and collective assessment. An insurance receivable is
considered as individually impaired if the counterparty is in the process of liquidation, legal
actions has been taken to recover the outstanding balance disputed, defaulted or delinquent
in payment. Insurance receivables with insignificant balances are grouped together and
assessed collectively based on past payment trends.
The Company records impairment allowance for insurance receivables in a separate
allowance account. A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for insurance
receivables is as follows:
Note 2020 2019
3 : RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 14,093 12,766
Charge for the financial year 24 (2,103) 1,327
At 31 December

11,990 14,093
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

(e)
2

21

2.2

Major Risks (continued)

Financial Risk (continued)

Credit risk (coniinued)

No collateral is held as security for any past due or impaired financial assets.

In addition, the Company has no impairment as at 31 December 2020 {2019: RM Nil) from

its investment in debt securities in accordance to the Company's accounting policy as
disclosed in Note 2(e)(v) to the financial statements.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Company does not have the availability of funds to honour all
cash outflow commitments as they fall due.

The Company’s principal liquidity objective is to ensure that funds are available to meet its
insurance and reinsurance obligations. Management utilises monthly cash flow reporting
and forecasting to identify known, expected and potential cash outflows to determine an
appropriate operating liquidity to cover expected and potential payments.

Maturity profiles

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets and financial
liabilities of the Company based on remaining undiscounted contractual obligations,
including interest payable and receivable.

For insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets, maturity profiles are determined
based on estimated timing of net cash outflows from the recognised insurance liabilities.
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

(e)
2

2.3

Major Risks {continued)

Financial Risk (continued)

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three
types of risk, namely foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates
(interest rate risk) and market prices {price risk).

2.3.1

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the exposure of a company's financial strength to the
potential impact of movements in foreign exchange rates. The risk is that
adverse fluctuations in exchange rates may result in a reduction in measures of
financiat strength.

The Company fransacts in minimal selected currencies and monitors
corresponding assets and liabilities created at transaction level to ensure
optimal currency positions.

The Company's primary transactions are carried out in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM").
Its exposure to foreign exchange risk is minimum and mainly arises principally
with respect to United State Dollar ("USD"), Australian Dollar ("AUD"), New
Zealand Dollar (*"NZD"), Singapocre Dollar {"SGD") and New Taiwan Dollar
(“TWDII).

As the Company's business is conducted primarily in Malaysia, the Company’s
financial assets are also primarily maintained in Malaysia, and hence, primarily
denominated in the local currency as is its insurance contract liabilities.

The Company does not engage in derivaiive transactions for speculative
purposes. Where deemed necessary in line with the Company's risk
management policy, the Company enters into derivative transactions solely for
hedging purposes.

As the Company's main foreign exchange risk from recognised assets and
liabilities arises from reinsurance inward and outward transactions for which
the balances are expected to be settled and realised in less than a year, the
impact arising from sensitivity in foreign exchange rates is deemed minimal as
the Company has no significant concentration of foreign currency risk.
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Registration No.
197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

(e) Major Risks (continued)

2 Financial Risk {continued)
2.3 Market Risk {continued)
2.3.2 Interestrate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the effect of interest rate changes on the market
value of a fixed income portfolio. When interest rates (yields) of fixed income
securities increase, their prices will decrease, and vice versa. Fixed income
securities with longer maturity and lower coupon rates are usually more
sensitive to interest rate changes.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through its investments in fixed
income securities and money market placements with the financial institutions.
These investments are managed internally, aided by an appointed investment
advisor which is a licensed fund manager. Interest rate risk is managed via
management and monitoring of the portfolio duration with active support from
the investment advisor.

The sensitivity analysis below illustrates impact of 100bps increase/decrease in
interest rate to investment value based on portfolio holdings as of 31 December
2020, holding other variables constant. Note that the sensitivity analysis
assumes the following:

1) Money market rates are adjusted to the same quantum of any change
in interest rate movement. This refers to money market placements
with financial institutions.

2) Parallel shift in yields in the same quantum of any change in interest
rate movement. This refers to investment in fixed income securities.

2020 2019

Impact on Impact on
Variable profit  Impact on profit  Impact on
charges after tax equity™ after tax equity*

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000

Interest rate +100

basis points - (29,182) - (18,389)
Interest rate -100

basis points - 29,182 - 18,389

*Impact on equity reflects adjustments for tax, when applicable.
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

(e)
2

2.3

Major Risks {continued)

Financial Risk (continued)

Market Risk {continued)

233

Equity price risk

Equity price risk refers to risk of changes in the value of an equity security.
Securities may increase or decline in value due to various factors affecting
equity market. Generally, it can be affected by industry-wide factars, or reasons
specific to the company or its securities, such as management performance
and financial positions. Price risk can be mitigated through diversification in
general.

The Company is exposed to equity price risk arising from investment held by
the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as available-
for-sale financial assets that mainly consists of unquoted equities amounting to
RM 375,000 (2019; RM375,000).

As the Company’s portfolio of investments in unquoted equities is insignificant,
the impact arising from sensitivity in equity price risk is deemed minimal.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human errors, fraud or
external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to
reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss.

The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks but by initiating a rigorous
control framework and by monitoring and responding te potential risks, the Company is
able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access
control, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff training and evaluation
procedures, including the use of Internal Audit.

Business risks, such as, changes in environment, technology and the industry are
monitored through the Company's strategic planning and budgeting process.
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Registration No.

197001000564 (9827A)

CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)
RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

(e} Major Risks (continued)

Capital structure

The capital structure of the Company as at 31 December 2020, as prescribed under the
RBC Framewaork is provided below:

2020 2019
RM'000 RM'000
Eligible Tier 1 Capital:
Share capital 100,000 100,000
Retained earnings 672,072 616,253
772,072 716,253
Tier 2 Capital:
AFS reserves 19,670 12,581
Equity reserve 16,402 12,450
Amount deducted from capital (17,860) (23,456)
Total capital available 790,284 717,828

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 25 September 2020, the Malaysia Competition Commission ("MyCC") has issued its Notice
of Finding of an Infringement under Section 40 of the Competition Act 2010. MyCC has
determined that the Company, together with PIAM and the other 21 other insurers, have
infringed the prohibitions in Section 4 of the Competiticn Act prohibition in that the parties had
entered into an agreement to fix the price of parts trade discount and labour rates for PIAM
Approved Repairers Scheme (PARS) workshops.

As a resulf of the finding, MyCC has imposed a financial penalty of RM4,218,671 on the
Company. Based on the legal opinions obtained, the Company is of the view that MyCC has
wrongly concluded the infringement. 1t filed a Notice of Appeal and an Application for a Stay of
Decision to the Competition Appeal Tribunal (“the Tribunal”) on the finding by MyCC and the
financial penalty imposed.

On 23 March 2021, the Tribunal allowed the Application for a Stay of Decision on the financial
penalty imposed pending the outcome of the Appeal.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company does not have any other contingent assets and
liabilities since-the last annual balance sheet date.

105



‘,\

31

32

Registration No.
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CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

IMPACT OF COVID-19

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, Malaysia and worldwide social and
economic activity became severely impacted by the spread and threat of the novel coronavirus
(Covid-19) pandemic. The Company took various actions to minimise exposure risk to its
employees, including restricting travel and instituting extensive work from home protocols and
at the same time, strived to serve its customers with minimal disruption.

While the Cempany's revenue was adversely impacted during the financial year, it was negated
by lower claims and management expenses incurred. As a result, the Company’s profitability for
the financial year was not significantly impacted by the pandemic.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE UNDER AMENDMENTS TO MFRS 4 INSURANCE CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

The following additional disclosures, required by Amendments to MFRS 4 for entity qualified
and elected the temporary exemption from applying MFRS 9, present the Company's financial
assets by their contractual cash flows characteristics, which indicate if they are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding ("SPPI"):

FV changes
FV at end of during
reporting date the year
31 December 2020 RM'000 RM'000
Financial assets with contractual terms that 1,657,397 9,328
give rise to cash flows that are SPPI
Other financial assets 407,674 -
Total 1,965,071 9,328
FV changes
FV at end of during
reporting date the year
31 December 2019 RM'000 RM'000
Financial assets with contractual terms that 1,510,474 14,835
give rise to cash flows that are SPP|
Other financial assets 390,381 -
Total 1,900,855 14,835
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Registration No.
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CHUBB INSURANCE MALAYSIA BERHAD

(incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE UNDER AMENDMENTS TO MFRS 4 INSURANCE CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The table below presents the credit risk exposure for aforementioned financial assets with

contractual terms that give rise on SPPI:

Carrying amount Carrying amount

as at as at

31 December 2020 * 31 December 2019 *

RM'000 RM'000

Government Guaranteed 714,566 782,327
AAA 527,784 452,239
AA 272,393 223,243
A 33,024 43,987
BEBB 9,277 8,334
Not Rated 353 344
Total 1,677,397 1,510,474

*Carrying amount represents amount before adjusting for impairment allowance.
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